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Ampthill is composed of two separate houses placed back to back and connected
by a short one-story frame passage. The older house of the two is a two-
story frame dwelling which appears to have been built in the eighteenth
century and extensively remodeled at about the same time the brick house

was built. 1In its original form, the frame house was apparently a story-
and-a-half structure with a side hall plan and one-story flanking wings. In
the remodeling the center of the house seems to have been raised to two full
stories and given a shallow hipped roof. All of the foundations were rebuilt
except for that of the east wing which retains its eighteenth-century style
Flemish bond foundation. The :center section and the wings also received
simple Roman Doric cornices matching those on the brick section. It is
gggggh£~EE§E‘these alterations occurred no earlier than 1830, because the
three mdntels on’ the interior are cmpled from the three des1gns for mantels
illustrated in Asher Benjamin's builder's handbook, Practical House Carpenter
the first edition of which was published :in-1830. Although these mantels and
a Federal style stair were installed in the remodeling, much of the original
woodwork was left intact. This woodwork includes paneled wainscoting,

raised paneled doors, chair rails, and door and window enframements.

The brick portion of Ampthill is more sophisticated architecturally than
the frame portion. It is a long, s1ng1e pile one- story structure covered

by a hipmm# roof with two interior chimmeys. The facade is su‘btly asymmetrical:

the pr1Qc1pa1 architectural element, a one-story tetrastyle Roman Doric
portico, has three bays to the left of it but only two bays on the right.

The unusually large windows have six-over-six sash and flat lintels and sills
of white marble. The very even Flemish bond used throughout the bu11d1ng
is.an example:of nineteenth-rcentury masonry-at its-best.: --./- -

The-plan of the later section-censists of two large rooms on either-.side of
a large hall. At the west end of the house are two small rooms separated
by a passage leading to an exterior door at that end. The interior trim

is quite simple but sophisticated. Most of the moldings and trim are of
Greek Revival type and appear also to have-been based on Asher Benjamin's
examples. The three mantels in the brick section are black marble with
gold veins, and are original.

Ampthill retains several of its brick outbuildings which are to the west

and north of the house. These outbuildings are all laid in American bond

and all appear to date from the second or third quarter of the nineteenth
century.

Most of the lands that comprised the original Ampthill tract of the Harrisons
have remained intact and are farmed by the present owners of
This well-maintained farm with its rolling fields, rich bo

scenic views across the James River prov1de a handsome hi uR
the house. £ 7R : : :7
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Ampthill began as one of the tracts on- the large estate, Clifton; patented
by Thomas Randolph in 1723. Clifton was sold by Randolph td Robert "Ring'
Carter, who in turn willed it to his grandson,: Carter Henry Harrison.
(Carter Henry Harrison ig.remempered as being the author of  the Cumberland
Resolutions -- the first publicly approved instructions for continental
independence.) 1In 1781, Carter Henry Harrison became caught up in
financial difficulties and was forced to give Clifton to his third son,
Randolph. The Ampthill portion of Clifton was later purchased by
Randolph Harrison from his older brother, Robert Carter Harrison.
at Clifton by 1815, he apparently was considering building a house
for himself, for in that year he asked his friend Thomas Jefferson to
provide him with a set of plans. In September 1815, Jefferson sent
Harrison a ground plan and elevation for a one-story, six room house.
It is believed, however, that Harrison did not build his house until
1835, following the. death of:his.wife, . .lt.isrsaid-that he.buyilt then-:
in the hope that a new house might help him attract a new wife. The
=pite chesen for the house was the Ampthillitract, named for the.€ary.: .
estate in Chesterfield County.

Gerl, SR A anERTD e ={fl n =€

The house built by Harrison at Ampthlll was_ attached to a frame dwelling
- already standing on the farw.: Little is known of this earlier hauses:.

but it is thought that it was built prior to the Revolution. Architectura
evidence would bear out a pre-Revolutionary date. Interestingly,
Harrison made no attempt to tie the two buildings architecturally, even
though the frame house appears to have been substantially remodeled
about the same time the brick house was built. Although built in Roman
Revival style the:plan of the new brick house bore little resemblance
to the plans identified by Fiske Kimball as Jefferson's copies of the
Ampthill plans. Unfortunately, Jefferson's elevation for Ampthill has
been lost, but it is conce1vable_thatdﬂan21§gp may have based the
general outl;ne of the house on Jefferson's scheme. As Jefferson
indicated to Harrison:when he sent his drawings: Y. . . the elevation
is merely a sketch to give a general idea. The workman, if he is
anything of an architect, will be able to draw the particulars."”
Whether or not Jefferson can be directly credited as the architect of
Ampthill, the characteristics of his style -- whitewashed Roman details
set against red brick walls, tall rectangular windows hung with dark
green shutters, and compact but carefully proportioned outline -- are

rtalnl a--arent. Thou§h long ne;lected, both structurally and
mpthill . now han-Sou: restored and stands as a visual
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